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INDIANAPOLIS DIVISION
NERDS ON CALL, INC., ) oL uiCss
)
Plaintiff, ;1 : 07-cv- 0535 -DFH -IAB
V. ) CASE NO.
)
INTERNET BILLING SERVICES, INC., )
and RYAN ELDRIDGE, Individually, )
)
Defendants. )

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES

Comes now Plaintiff NERDS ON CALL, INC. (hereinafter “NOC”), by counsel,
Theodore J. Minch, and for its Complaint for Damages (hereinafter the “Complaint™)
against Defendants Internet Billing Services, Inc., a/k/a Nerds on Call, Inc. (hereinafter
“IBS”) and Ryan Eldridge, Individually (hereinafter “RE”), (IBS and RE may be
collectively referred to hereinafter as “Defendants”), hereby states and alleges as follows:

PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE

l. NOC 1s a corporation duly existing and incorporated under the laws of the
State of Indiana with its principal office at 9430 Los Robles Road, Fishers, Indiana
46038, United States of America.

2. IBC, upon information and belief, is a corporation incorporated under the
laws of State of California with its principal place of business at 215 Lake Boulevard,
No. 494, Redding, California 96003,

3. RE, upon information and belief, is an individual and principal of IBC,

and is doing business at 215 Lake Boulevard, No. 494, Redding, California 96003.
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4, NOC is a citizen of the State of Indiana and the venue of the Southern
District of Indiana, Indianapolis Division; the amount in controversy exceeds Seventy-
five Thousand Dollars ($75,000) exclusive of interest, costs, and attorneys’ fees.

S. Defendants are citizens of states other than the State of Indiana
(specifically, California) and the venue of the Southern District of Indiana, Indianapolis
Division.

6. This Court has original jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331 and 1332. This Court also has subject matter jurisdiction over the claims in this
Complaint arising under the Lanham Act pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1121 and 28 U.S.C. §
1338.

7. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants, as Defendants have
committed acts that have caused tortious injury n this Judicial District, the Southern
District of Indiana, Indianapolis Division, pursuant to Ind. Code § 32-13-1-9.

8. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

9. Since Defendants are subject to personal jurisdiction in this Judicial
District, the Southern District of Indiana, Indianapolis Division, Defendants reside in this
Judicial District for the purposes of establishing personal jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §
1391.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

10. Since at least as early as January 1, 1995, NOC has used the literal
elements of the mark “NERDS ON CALL” (hereinafter the “Mark”) (i.e. — “NERDS ON
CALL”) in Interstate Commerce on or in connection with the services provided to by

NOC, namely, to assist companies increase profits and individuals live better lives
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through the effective use of technology by developing solutions designed to ensure
individuals and small businesses achieve maximum return on their technology
investment.

12. NOC has continuously utilized and / or protected the Mark since at least as
early as January 1, 1995, the first usc date of the Mark by NOC.

13. Likewise, NOC has expended countless resources in advertising and / or
protecting the Mark since at least as early as January 1, 1995, the first use date of the
Mark by NOC.

14. NOC has filed a Federal Trademark Application for the Mark in the
United States Patent and Trademark Office in association with Providing Services in the
Area of Technology Solutions and Management to Individuals and Corporations in
International Class 037; NOC’s application is currently pending at the United States
Patent and Trademark Office.

OWNERSHIP BY NERDS ON CALL, INC. OF THE MARK
“NERDS ON CALL”

15. As alleged herein, NOC is the owner and proprietor of the trademark
“NERDS ON CALL” (the “Mark”).

16. As owner and proprietor of the Mark since at least as early as January 1.
1995, NOC is the first to use Mark and, likewise, has continuously used the Mark on or in
connection with providing services in the area of technology solutions and management
to individuals and corporations in Interstate commerce.

17. Said ownership of the Mark is based upon the tact that NOC is the first to

use the Mark in Interstate Commerce and is as a direct and proximate result of NOC’s
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efforts with regard to the Mark, The Mark has become synonymous with NOC’s various
business endeavors, some of which include but are not necessarily limited to the
installation, maintenance, and repair of computers for homes and businesses.

18. Because NOC has continuously used and protected the Mark in Interstate
commerce, the Mark, as owned by NOC, may be protected from such unauthorized,
illegal, and infringing uses of the Mark as made by third parties such as IBS without
NOC’s prior, express approval.

19. NOC'’s actions to protect its Mark includes but is certainly not necessarily
limited to the institution of formal opposition proceedings against any and all
unauthorized third party applicant’s for the registration of the Mark.

20. Long before the acts herein complained of, the Mark, in this District and
in Interstate commerce, has become a well-known service mark associated by the public
with NERDS ON CALL, INC.; as such, the Mark represents enormous good will that
belongs solely and exclusively to NOC.

21. The Mark is an invaluable asset of NOC for the purpose for designating
and distinguishing the goods and / or services provided, sponsored and / or endorsed by
NOC:; likewise, the Mark 1s fundamental to the overall value and the legacy ot NERDS
ON CALL, INC.

THE ACTIVITIES OF INTERNET BILLING SERVICES, INC. AND
RYAN ELDRIDGE, INDIVIDUALLY

22. Upon information and belief, IBS was founded in 2002 under the direction
and management of RE, is located in Redding, California, and provides the on-sight

repair of computers the home and / or office.
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23. Upon information and belief, no earlier than March, 2004, over eight (8)
years following NOC’s first use of the Mark, and, after being exposed to the Mark as a
result of NOC’s use of the Mark in Interstate commerce, IBS and RE began using the
Mark, without approval of or authorization by NOC.

24, Upon information and belief, IBS™ and RE’s use of the Mark was then and
remains restricted to an area of Northern California; specifically, Redding, California; in
short, IBS’ unauthorized use of the Mark is not Interstate commerce.

25. On or about November 22, 2004, IBS and RE filed trademark application
no. 78/521,149, for the Mark in International Class 037 (the installation, maintenance,
and repair of computers for homes and businesses) with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office.

26. IBS and RE filed the Application approximately forty-three (43) days after
receiving a cease and desist letter from counsel for NOC.! See Exhibits A and B, cease
and desist letters sent from NoC to Defendants on October 9, 2004 and January 19, 2005.

27. Despite the letters sent to IBS advising Defendants of NOC’s prior rights
in and to the Mark, upon information and belief, IBS continued to use the Mark, locally,
in the Sacramento area of Northern California; said use of the Mark 1s, upon information
and belief, restricted to the Sacramento locale and is not in Interstate Commerce as
claimed, in bad faith and under oath, by IBS and RE in support of the Federal trademark

application as filed by Defendants.

" Counsel for NOC’s cease and desist letter was dated October 9, 2004 and was sent to Defendants at
Defendants’ business address (1348 Market Street, Suite 206, Redding, California 96003) via certified
mail, return receipt requested (and reccived). Defendants failed to respond to NOC’s cease and desist
letter; a second follow-up cease and desist letter was sent to Defendants at Defendants’ herein contained
business address on or about January 19, 2005. Defendants failed to respond to said correspondence {rom
NOC yet proceeded in filing the Application seven (7) days (November 22, 2004) after receipt of NOC’s
original letter.
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28. On or about March 28, 2007, NOC instituted and filed a formal opposition
proceeding against Defendants’ Federal Trademark Application for the Mark; said
opposition proceeding exists under Case No. 91176474 and is currently pending in the
United States Patent and Trademark Office Trademark Trial and Appeal Board.

29. By way of its filing the foregoing application, Defendants, without prior
authorization of NOC, is seeking to trade oft the goodwill in and to the Mark as created
by NOC by obtaining, under the provisions of the Trademark Act of 1946, as amended,
registration of the Mark in International Class 037 upon the Principal Register of the
United States Patent and Trademark Office.

30. Specifically, via the Internet at Defendants” Internet site
www.callnerds.com, actual and potential consumers from the Indiana — Southern District
jurisdiction, can utilize Defendants’ service and, as such, may be actually confused as to
the source, origin, endorsement, and / or sponsorship of Defendants’ business activities
by NOC.

31 With regard to the specific instances of Defendants’ malfeasance where
NOC is concerned, Detendants have utilized, without authorization, the Mark as
exclusively owned by NOC, at the direction of RE, on or in association with the
advertisement of computer repair services.

32. Likewise, Defendants are impermissibly using the Mark extensively on or
in connection with Defendants’ Internet site, www.callnerd.com.

33. Further, Defendants have knowingly and intentionally misused the Mark
in Defendants’ sales brochures as connected with the promotion of Defendants” computer

repair services.



34, IBS, upon information and belief, at the direction of RE, intentionally
misled consumers by engaging in false advertising on its Internet site through the
extensive and illegal use of the Mark thereon.

35. NOC maintains written evidence in the form of electronic transmissions
from NOC consumers of actual confusion as to the owner of the Mark.

36. As evidence of Defendants’ knowing unauthorized use of the Mark,
despite receiving cease and desist letters from counsel for NOC (See Exhibits A and B),
Defendants maliciously filed a trademark application for the Mark with the United States
Patent and Trademark Office, continued to use and expand the use of the Mark on
Defendants’ Internet site, and continued to use and expand use of the Mark on
Defendants’ marketing and advertisement materials.

37. The Parties have attempted to resolve the matter of the misuse of the Mark
via formal, written correspondence as exchanged between the Parties; all such eftorts
have been without success to date.

IRREPARABLE HARM

38. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth fully herein, the
allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 37. of this Complaint for Damages.

39. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ unauthorized and illegal
use of the Mark, NOC will be irreparably injured in that actual and potential customers
will be misled and confused regarding the source, sponsorship, and origin of the Mark

and NOC’s services.



40. Defendants have infringed on NOC’s Mark with intent to unfairly trade on
and misappropriate the reputation and goodwill of NOC and the Mark.

41. As a result of the foregoing and herein claimed intentional tortuous misuse
of the Mark by Defendants, NOC’s rights in and to the Mark have been and will continue
to be irreparably harmed by Defendants unless Defendants are enjoined.

42. NOC’s remedy at law is inadequate to prevent further violation and
disparagement of the Mark by Defendants.

COUNTI

TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT UNDER
SECTION 32(1) OF THE LANHAM ACT

43. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth fully herein, the
allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 42. of this Complaint for Damages.

44.  Defendants’ unauthorized and infringing use of the Mark, including but
not limited to the Mark, infringes upon NOC’s exclusive rights in and to its Federally
protected Mark in violation of Section 32(1) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1) in
that said conduct is likely to cause confusion and to cause the relevant public to
mistakenly believe that there is a connection, association, or atfiliation between NOC and
the Defendants.

45. Defendants’ conduct as challenged herein by NOC is intentional,
malicious, and willful.

46. NOC’s rights in and to the Mark have been and will continue to be
irreparably harmed by Defendants unless Defendants are enjoined from the herein pled

knowingly unlawful and infringing activities.



47. NOC’s remedy of law is inadequate to prevent further violation of NOC’s
rights in and to the Mark as perpetrated by Defendants.

COUNT 11
INDIANA STATE STATUTORY UNFAIR COMPETITION

48. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth fully herein, the
allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 47. of this Complaint for Damages.

49. NOC is an entity possessing / owning intellectual property including but
not necessarily limited to Federally protected trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets, and /
or patents as defined by 1.C. § 32-13-1-6 (hereinafter the “NOC Intellectual Property
Rights”) because the NOC Intellectual Property has commercial value.

50. NOC has used and authorized the use of the Mark and the NOC
Intellectual Property for a commercial purpose, as defined by I.C. § 32-13-1-2.

51. NOC possesses and / or owns the Mark and the NOC Intellectual Property;
as such, NOC may duly exercise and enforce these rights pursuant to [.C. § 32-13-1-17.

52. Defendants, by their collective activities described herein, have used the
Mark for an illegal and unauthorized commercial purpose without having obtained previous
written consent in violation of [.C. § 32-13-1-6.

53. Detendants have engaged in conduct prohibited by 1.C. § 32-13-1-9 and
the common law of intellectual property rights.

54. NOC’s rights in and to the Mark have been and will continue to be
irreparably harmed by Defendants uniess Defendants are enjoined from the unauthorized,

illegal, and infringing activities herein complained of by NOC.



55. NOC’s remedy at law is inadequate to prevent further violation by
Defendants of NOC’s rights in and to the Mark.

COUNT HI
UNFAIR COMPETITION UNDER 15 U.S.C. § 1125(A)

56. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth tully herein, the
allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 56. of this Complaint for Damages.

57. NOC has adopted and the Defendants are illegally using in International
and interstate commerce the Mark in a manner that is likely to and has caused confusion,
mistake, and / or deception in the marketplace as to the origin, sponsorship, or approval
of the associated goods and / or services by NOC.

58. Defendants’ activities constitute use in commerce, International or
otherwise, of a term, namé, symbol, or device, or a false designation of origin, or a false
or misleading description or representation of tact, which is likely to cause confusion,
mistake, or to deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of the NOC goods
and / or services, and as to the origin, sponsorship, endorsement, or approval of
Defendants goods and / or services by NOC.

59. Defendants’ activities have been willful, deliberate, and intentional,
causing a likelihood of confusion, and were done with the intent to trade upon NOC’s
goodwill and reputation.

60. NOC’s business, goodwill, and reputation have been and will continue to
be irreparably harmed by Defendants unless Defendants are enjoined from their

exploitative and infringing commercial business practices.
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61. NOC’s remedy of law is inadequate to prevent further violation of its
publicity rights.

62. Defendants” unauthorized and illegal activities constitute unfair
competition in violation of the Federal Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(A).

COUNT IV
COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION

63. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth fully herein, the
allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 62. of this Complaint for Damages.

64. Defendants have incorporated and used the Mark in violation of the
common law of the State of Indiana.

65. Defendants’ actions constitute misappropriation of the Mark.

66. Defendants’ unauthorized and illegal use of the Mark was done
knowingly, willfully, intentionally, and with full knowledge of NOC’s ownership of the
Mark.

67. NOC’s business, goodwill, and reputation have been and will continue to
be irreparably harmed by Defendants unless Defendants are enjoined from their
exploitative and infringing commercial business practices.

68. NOC’s remedy of law is inadequate to prevent further infringement.

69. Defendants’ activities constitute unfair competition in violation ot the
Indiana State common law.

COUNT YV
UNJUST ENRICHMENT

70. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth fully herein, the

allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 69. of this Complaint for Damages.
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71. Defendants have been unjustly enriched through their actions at the
expense of and to the loss and detriment of NOC.

COUNT VI
TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE OF CONTRACTS

72. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth tully herein, the
allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 71. of this Complaint for Damages.

73. NOC has established and expects to further establish contractual
relationships and licenses for the commercial use of the Mark and / or the NOC
Intellectual Property; likewise, NOC has derived economic advantages from these
contractual relationships and licenses.

74. Defendants are aware of NOC’s ongoing and prospective contractual
relationships and licenses.

75. Detendants, with knowledge of these ongoing and prospective contractual
relationships and licenses, intentionally interfered with these contractual relationships and
licenses by incorporating the Mark in the name and / or advertisement of Defendants’
goods and / or services by utilizing the Mark directly on or in connection with
Defendants goods and / or services as associated with IBS, and by causing or attempting
to cause consumers to purchase Defendants goods and / or services in the mistaken belief
that Defendants goods and / or services are authorized by or offered in affiliation with
NOC.

76. Defendants have harmed NOC by engaging in the tortious interference

conduct as described herein above.
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COUNT VIl
CONVERSION

77. REAL hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth fully herein,
the allegations made in Paragraphs [. through 76. of this Complaint for Damages.

78. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described above, have exerted
unauthorized control over the property of another in violation of [.C. § 35-43-4-2.

79. Defendants have harmed NOC by engaging in conversion as described
herein above.

80. Pursuant to 1.C. § 34-24-3-1, NOC is entitled to the following: treble
damages, costs of the action, reasonable attorneys’ fees, actual travel expenses,
reasonable amount for loss of time, actual direct and indirect expenses for loss of time,

and all other reasonable costs of collection.

COUNT VIl
FALSE ADVERTISING

79. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth fully herein, the
allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 80. of this Complaint.

80. Defendants, by engaging in the conduct described above, have knowingly,
willfully, and intentionally engaged in false advertising in violation of Indiana State and
Federal Law.

81. Defendants have harmed NOC by engaging in false advertising as
described herein above.

82. Pursuant to Indiana State and Federal Law, NOC is entitled to the

following: treble damages, costs of the action, reasonable attorneys’ fees, actual travel
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expenses, reasonable amount for loss of time, actual direct and indirect expenses for loss
of time, and all other reasonable costs of collection.

83. NOC’s business, goodwill, and reputation have been and will continue to
be irreparably harmed by Defendants unless Defendants are enjoined from their willtul
and knowing false advertisement as herein complained of.

80. NOC’s remedy of law where Defendants’ knowing and intentional false
and misleading advertising is concerned and is inadequate to prevent further and
irreparable harm to NOC.

COUNT IX
FRAUD

81. NOC hereby incorporates by reference as though set forth fully herein, the
allegations made in Paragraphs 1. through 80. of this Complaint for Damages.

82. Defendants have knowingly and willfully advised third party potential
licensees that Defendants own the rights in and to the Mark.

83. Defendants representations with regard to the ownership of the Mark were
false; the Defendants made the said representations knowing the same were false.

84. The third party licensees relied upon the false representations made by
Defendants with regard to the ownership of the Mark; said reliance was to the detriment
of NOC.

85. The fraud committed by the Defendants with regard to the of the Mark by
the Defendants has resulted in significant and irreparable harm to NOC in an amount that

Is, as yet, immeasurable but which amount continues to accrue.

14



WHEREFORE, Piaintifft NERDS ON CALL, INC. prays this Court for the
following relief as against Defendants, collectively and / or individually (severally):

1. An award of actual damages, including profits, derived from the
unauthorized use of NOC’s Intellectual Property pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) and the
common law;

2. An award of actual damages, including profits, derived from the
unauthorized engagement in unfair trade practices pursuant to Federal law and the
common law:

3. An award of treble damages for the knowing, willful, or intentional
unauthorized use of NOC’s Intellectual Property pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) and the
common law;

4. An award of reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses related to this
action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) and the common law;

5. An award of costs of the action, actual travel expenses, reasonable amount
for loss of time, actual direct and indirect expenses for loss of time, and all other
reasonable costs of collection pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) and the common law;

6. An order preliminarily and permanently enjoining Defendants from the
unauthorized use of NOC’s Intellectual Property pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) and the
common law;

7. An order directing Defendants to destroy and / or surrender to NOC any

and all advertising materials and / or products utilizing NOC’s Intellectual Property,
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including but not necessarily limited to those advertising brochures utilizing the “NERDS
ON CALL” Federally protected trademark;

8. An order directing Defendants to destroy and / or delete any and all source
codes, electronic data files, and / or printouts from Defendants’ Internet pages as located

at hiypyavww.callnerds.comvnoc contact.php utilizing the NOC Intellectual Property:

9. An order directing Defendants’ retail partners to which any and all of the
advertising materials and / or infringing products may have been distributed to either
return the same to Defendants for destruction and / or surrender to NOC or to voluntarily
destroy and / or surrender the same in their respective possession directly to NOC; and

10. Any and all other just, proper, and equitable relief in the premises.

Respectfully submitted by,

¢ J. Minch (18798-49)
M ;

Attornews for Nerds on Call, Inc.
sapeake Drive
McCordsville, Indiana 46055
(317) 335-3601 (t)

(317) 335-3602 ()

gminchiw sovichminch.com (e-mail)
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SOVICHMINCH..

LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL COUNSELORS

10099 Chesapeake Drive, Suite 100, McCordsville, Indiana 46055
Telephone: 317.335.3601 Facsimile: 317.335.3602

WWW. SOVICHMINCH.COM

Via Certified Mail Only
November 15, 2004

Mr. Ryan Eldridge

Owner

Nerds on Call

1348 Market Street

Suite 206

Redding, California 96003

Re:  Unauthorized Commercial Use of the Mark “NERDS ON CALL in Association
with the Installation, Maintenance, and Repair of Computers for Homes and
Small Businesses

Dear Mr. Eldridge:

Please be advised that this firm represents DocTR, Inc. (hereinafter "DI”), proprietor of
the trademarks, rights of association, and / or sponsorship and rights in and to the mark
“NERDS on Call” (hereinafter the “Mark”). As you may be aware, DI is the sole and
exclusive owner of all commercial and allied rights relating to the use of the Mark.

Specifically, DI is the owner of Federal trademark copyright rights as associated with the
Mark.

As counsel for DI, our firm pursues and prosecutes all claims and causes of action arising
out of or relating to the unauthorized use of the Mark. Accordingly, by virtue of our
continuous and ongoing enforcement of rights in and to the Mark, we discovered that
your company or sole proprietorship is commercially utilizing the Mark, in its entirety,
without prior authorization from DI. By virtue of our independent investigation of your
unauthorized use in this regard, it has been made clear to us that such use is in association
with the installation, maintenance, and repair of computers for homes and businesses.
You should know that the mark utilized by you in association with your business is
1dentical to the Mark and the services for which your mark is associated is just the sort of
services for which the Mark is commonly known. Accordingly, such unauthorized use of
these protected intellectual properties as owned by DI is in direct contravention to DI’s
aforementioned rights and therefore must be promptly addressed.

You may be aware that your unauthorized use of Mark may constitute a direct violation
of United States Federal law, specifically, section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U. S.C. §
1125(a). Such unauthorized use necessarily implies a misleading designation of source
origin, endorsement, sponsorship, or approval by DI of your various products and / or
services as well as of your business, itself. Under the Lanham Act, third parties are
prohibited from exploiting another's trademark rights for commercial purposes without
authorization.



Mr. Ryan Eldridge
November 15, 2004
Page 2 of 3

The Lanham Act is premised on the belief that the benefit or property right that one has
invested time, effort, and money into developing should be protected from unauthorized
commercial use. In essence, the Lanham Act prohibits one from "reaping what another
has sown" without fair compensation.'

For your information, our client routinely utilizes the Mark in interstate commerce in the
advertisement of DI’s products and services. Likewise, DI has expended countless
resources 1n the development, promotion, advertisement, and continuous protection of the
Mark to ensure that its investment therein is not only protected but is returned and grown
through vastly expanded commercial endeavors. Therefore, due to foregoing advertising
and use by DI and, perhaps, authorized licensees, any unauthorized sale and / or
advertisement of products and / or services utilizing the Mark irreparably damages DI's
business purposes directly, by undermining DI’s good will and reputation for quality
products and services, and indirectly, by depriving authorized users of the Mark their
rights.

In order to determine to what extent the use of your mark infringes upon DI's
aforementioned rights, we must request that you provide DI, by counsel, with more
detailed information concerning your current and / or contemplated use of the Mark in
California, including but not necessarily limited to copies of any and all promotional and
/ or advertising materials featuring your mark and how it is or may be used. In order to
expedite this matter due to the seriousness of DI’s claims as herein contained, we hereby
request that you provide us with the aforementioned information no later than the close of
business on November 29, 2004.

Should you fail to respond to this letter by the aforementioned deadline, be advised that
in order to ensure the protection of its rights, DI reserves the right to proceed with
appropriate legal action against Griebahn, which may include the filing of a formal
opposition proceeding against Griebahn's recently published application as well as a civil
suit to immediately arrest any further use of the applied-for mark by Griebahn.

In the alternative, should you wish to resolve this matter in an amicable fashion, you may
contact me at (317) 335-3601 to discuss the parameters of such a resolution. Thank you
for your prompt attention to this matter. I look forward to receiving the above-requested
information.

R.H. Donnelly Co. v. Illinois Bell Telephone Co., 595 F.Supp. 1202 (N.D. IiL.

1984).



Mr. Ryan Eldridge
November 15, 2004
Page 3 of 3

Nothing contained herein or omitted here from constitutes a waiver of any of the rights or
remedies at law or in equity of DocTR, Inc. and / or Kevin Bouchonnet, individually, all
of which are hereby expressly reserved.

ectfully submitted

orc J. ;
SovicM\Minch, LLP
Attorneys for DocTR, Inc.

TIM/pm

cc: Christine M. Sovich, Esq., Sovich Minch, LLP
Mr. Kevin Bouchonnet, DocTR, Inc.
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SOVICHMINCH..

LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL COUNSELORS

10099 Chesapeake Drive, Suite 100, McCordsville, Indiana 46055
Telephone: 317.335.3601 Facsimile: 317.335.3602

WWW.SOVICHMINCH.COM

Via Fax and First Class Mail Only
January 19, 2005

Mr. Ryan Eldridge

Internet Billing Services, Inc.
#494, 215 Lake Boulevard
Redding, California 96003

Re:  Unauthorized Commercial Use of the Mark “NERDS ON CALL in Association
with the Installation, Maintenance, and Repair of Computers for Homes and
Small Businesses

Dear Mr. Eldridge:

Enclosed please find our correspondence regarding the above-captioned matter as sent to
your attention via certified mail on or about the 15" day of November, 2004. It has come
to our attention, via our regular and random search of the United States Patent and
Trademark Office data base for recently filed trademark applications, that Internet Billing
Services, Inc. (hereinafter “IBS”) has proceeded in the filing of a United States trademark
application for the mark NERDS ON CALL in International Class 042 for various
services, including but not limited to, in-home and on-site computer repair, set up, and
upgrades.

In accordance therewith, you are hereby placed on notice that IBS’ trademark application
was made in bad faith and in blatant contravention of our client’s Federally protected
trademark rights in and to the “NERDS ON CALL” mark (hereinafter the “Mark™) after
IBS had received formal notice of our client’s ownership of the Mark. Specifically, our
above-referenced initial correspondence was received by you or one of your agents on or
about November 22, 2004 (as evidenced by the return receipt), the same day that the
Federal trademark application for the Mark was filed. As you are no doubt aware, and as
was explained to you in our November 15, 2004 missive, an owner of a federally
protected trademark may be entitled to statutory treble damages under the Section 43(a)
of the Lanham Act where said trademark owner is able to demonstrate that an individual
and / or entity has knowingly infringed upon the trademark rights belonging to the
trademark owner.

Further, an applicant or an agent of an applicant for Federal trademark protection such as
IBS, is required to declare under the penalties for perjury that they believe themselves to
be the sole owners of the mark said applicant intends to register. Clearly, by nature of
your unauthorized trademark application for the Mark, you not only have perhaps
committed perjury that may criminally actionable under Federal law, you have rendered
the trademark application void as a result of your bad faith declarations.



Mr. Ryan Eldridge
January 19, 2005
Page 2 of 2

Rest assured that absent agreement from you to voluntarily cease using the Mark, to
assign the currently pending Federal trademark application for the Mark to my client, and
providing us with the information requested on page two (2) of our November 15 letter
on or before February 1, 2005, we will have no other choice than to institute the
necessary formal litigation and administrative proceedings to ensure that my client’s
trademark rights are protected and that they are fairly compensated for your unauthorized
and infringing use of the Mark. To that end, I trust that your actions will be guided
accordingly.

Nothing contained herein or omitted here from constitutes a waiver of any of the rights or
remedies at law or in equity of DocTR, Inc. and / or Kevin Bouchonnet, individually, all
of which are hereby expressly reserved.

cc: Christine M. Sovich, Esq., Sovich Minch, LLP
Mr. Kevin Bouchonnet, DocTR, Inc.



